
MORGAN COUNTY COMMISSION 

A G E N D A
April 02, 2024 

10:00 AM 

150 East Washington Street, Madison, GA 

2nd Floor Board Room 

Pledge and Invocation 

Agenda Approval 

Scheduled Public Comments 
1. Paula Sellers-pg. #2

Minutes 
2. March 19, 2024 BOC Meeting-pg. #3

Planning Commission New Business 
3. Georgia Investment Group, LLC  is requesting a zoning map amendment, from AG/C1 to C1, for 

3.39 acres located at 4821 Seven Islands Road (Tax Parcel 055-038)-pg. #5

4. Tillman Infrastructure is requesting conditional use approval for a telecommunications tower on 
33.69 acres located at 4200 Brownwood Road (Tax Parcel 030-030B)-pg. #15

New Business 
5. County Manager Report

6. Public Comments on Agenda Items

7. Commissioner Comments

1



2



March 19, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

 

THE HONORABLE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, MADISON, GEORGIA, 

MET THIS DAY IN REGULAR SESSION.  

 
MEETING WAS HELD ON THE SECOND FLOOR OF THE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING. 

 

PRESENT: Chairman Bill Kurtz, Vice-Chair Blake McCormack, Commissioners Philipp von 

Hanstein, Donald Harris, and Ben Riden, Jr. 

 

STAFF: County Manager Adam Mestres, County Attorney Christian Henry, and County 

Clerk Leslie Brandt.      

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and 

Invocation. 

 

AGENDA APPROVAL 
  

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to approve the 

agenda with the following modification, add Recycling Discussion under New Business. Motion 

Passed Unanimously. 

 

MINUTES 
March 05, 2024 BOC Meeting 

  

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to approve the 

minutes as presented. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

PRESENTATION - COST OF COMMUNITY SERVICES (COCS) STUDY AND 

CRITICAL MASS STUDY  

Tom Daniels presented the Morgan County Critical Mass Study and Jeff Dorfman presented the 

Cost of Community Services Study. 

 

2024 ROAD RESURFACING 

RFP’s were received for resurfacing approximately 8 miles of roadway throughout Morgan 

County. Pittman Construction Company is the lowest bid at $1,796,327.94. East Coast Grading 

is a local Morgan County company with a bid of $1,845,288.90 which is $48,960.96 higher than 

Pittman. The county does provide a 5% local bidder preference which is approximately 

$90,000.00. Pittman Construction does have personal property located in Morgan County at the 

rock quarry, but the principal business is located outside of the county.  

RFP’s Received 

Pittman Construction $1,796,327.94 

East Coast Grading $1,845,288.90  

MHB Paving $1,928,816.97  

Vertical Earth, Inc. $1,951,354.44  

 

Motion by Commissioner Harris, Seconded by Commissioner McCormack to award the 2024 

county road resurfacing contract to East Coast Grading for an amount not to exceed 

$1,845,288.90. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

2024 ROAD PATCHING AND REPAIR 

RFP’s were received for patching and repairing approximately 9.3 miles of roadway throughout 

Morgan County. 

RFP’s Received 

East Coast Grading $872,500.00 

Pittman Construction $950,895.00  

MHB Paving $1,112,554.00  

Vertical Earth, Inc. $1,199,574.22  

3



March 19, 2024 

BOC Regular Meeting 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Motion by Commissioner Riden, Seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to award the 2024 

road patching and repair contract to East Coast Grading for an amount not to exceed $872,500. 

Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENT 
This request is for a budget amendment not to exceed $29,500 from Contingency to Human 
Resources – Professional Services to fund an update to the County's compensation plan. As 
previously discussed with the Commission, staff is seeking to update the compensation plan. 
Staff is currently seeking qualified firms to conduct a  review/update of job descriptions, market 
analysis of compensation with up to 15 organizations, revision of compensation chart, and cost 
estimations. 
 
Motion by Commissioner von Hanstein, Seconded by Commissioner Harris to table the budget 

amendment request. Commissioner Riden voted in favor of the motion and Commissioner 

McCormack voted in opposition. Motion Passed 3-1. 

 

RECYCLING DISCUSSION 

Members of the 5th Street Community Garden recently met with County Manager Adam Mestres 

regarding recycling in Morgan County. Mestres read a letter submitted by the 5th Street group to 

the Board with their recommendations for recycling in Morgan County. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

Morgan County resident Chas Moore commented on the closed dump site that was located on 

Fairplay Road. 

 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Commissioners made comments and gave updates on liaison assignments. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Riden, seconded by Commissioner von Hanstein to exit regular 

session and adjourn at 6:39 p.m. Motion Passed Unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Bill Kurtz, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Leslie Brandt, County Clerk       

4



1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 
    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  
Property location: 4821 Eatonton Highway 
Property tax parcel: 055-038 
Acreage: 3.39 acres  
Applicant: Khan Nahidul/GA Investment Group  
Applicant’s Agent: Thiep Huynh   
Property Owner: Georgia Investment Group, LLC  
Existing Zoning: AG (Agricultural) and C1 (Neighborhood Commercial 
Proposed Zoning: C1 (Neighborhood Commercial)  
 

Summary 

        
 

Khan Nahidul/GA 
Investment Group 
is requesting a 
Zoning Map 
Amendment, from 
AG/C1 to C1 for 
3.39 acres located 
at the corner of 
Highway 441 and 
Seven Islands 
Road. The site is 
known locally as 
the old Joe’s 
Store location. 
Joe’s Store was a 
gas station on 
1.21 acres that 
was zoned C1. 
The store closed 
years ago and the 
buildings were 
removed. A 2.18 

acre parcel was behind it that was zoned AG but used residentially. The current owner combined the 
parcels but did not address the different zoning designations, resulting in a split zoned parcel. The parcel 
is located on Highway 441 and the property size has been reduced by the increased right-of-way for the 
newly widened highway. GDOT installed two entrances for the parcel, one on the highway and one on 
Seven Islands Road. Both are located on the portion of the parcel that is zoned commercial.  

Petition for:  Zoning Map Amendment  

        

5



2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

   
The applicant proposes to use the parcel as a convenience store with fuel pumps, with four 2-sided 
passenger vehicle pumps and 2 semi-truck pumps. A 6,000 square retail space is proposed supported by 
35 parking spaces. Three underground tanks are located on the north side of the building. The plan 
shows one entrance directly off the south-bound side of Highway 441 and one entrance off of Seven 
Islands Road. Vehicles heading north on the highway must turn on Seven Islands. Passenger vehicles will 
have no navigation issues with the plan as shown, however, trucks could encounter issues going around 
the passenger vehicle pumps to access the truck pumps, and then going around the building to leave. 
There is also concern that a truck could not turn in off of Seven Islands Road if a car is waiting to pull 
out.  
 
Further concern regarding to the truck pumps is related to the definition of Neighborhood Commercial: 
 
The Neighborhood Commercial District is intended for the development of small nodes of retail sales and 
service establishments which, when appropriately located, are designed to provide limited convenience 
shopping and services for surrounding areas.  
 
These districts are not intended for auto-oriented business or strip center development, Neighborhood 
Commercial Districts should provide access to pedestrians and vehicles. 

6



3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Staff is concerned that limited convenience services for surrounding areas and lack of auto-oriented 
business would exempt truck traffic. A convenience store and passenger gas pumps, however, could be 
construed as a small node of development for the surrounding area.  
  
 

The applicant’s 
property is 
identified by 
the yellow 
circle. The 
closest 
commercial 
zoning is the 
new ACE 
Hardware (red 
arrow), which 
is over 4 miles 
from the 
subject parcel 
and is zoned 
C2. The next 
closest is at 
Exit 121 on 
Interstate 20 
at Buckhead 
(red circle)(C2 
and C3). 
 

 
The Morgan County Comprehensive Plan 
Character Area Map shows the area is forecast to 
be Rural Living, as indicated by the light green 
color. The existing C1 parcel is not indicated on 
the Comprehensive Plan, as spot-zoned, 
individual parcels were not identified on the 
map. The existing C1 parcel is grandfathered. 
Planning Commission should discuss whether the 
grandfathered status of the one parcel justifies 
zoning approval of the adjacent parcel, which is 
larger than the existing commercial parcel, 

particularly in light of the County’s adherence to the Character Area Map of the Comprehensive Plan.  

7



4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Previous Request  
        

The applicant came before the Planning Commission in October of 2023 with a proposal for the same 
property, which included a strip center, convenience store and passenger vehicle fuel pumps. Planning 
Commission discussed the application, reasoning that the information provided was inadequate to 
determine if the property was large enough for septic drain fields. No uses were identified for the 
proposed strip center units. It was noted that a fuel station could be considered an appropriate use for 
the commercially zoned part of the property, but a single-family residence could be considered equally 
appropriate for the AG portion. Discussion highlighted that the use of the area could change in the 
future, given the newly widened highway, but that growth on the highway in recent years did not 
indicate change was immediately forthcoming. The members also felt the applicant was simply trying to 
put too much on the property. The Planning Commission recommended denial of the presented 
application, but suggested that the Board of Commissioners examine the appropriateness of zoning the 
entire parcel C1 for a gas station only, without the strip center. The Board of Commissioners expressed 
opposition to the application and the applicant withdrew the application at the meeting.  
 

Criteria for Consideration  
        

From the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, Section 19.3.1. Staff comments are in blue.  

1. The zoning proposal is suitable in view of the use of adjacent and nearby property and the zoning 
proposal will not affect the existing uses or usability of adjacent or nearby uses;.  The property is 
already spot-zoned due to the previous gas station. Hours of operation should be discussed, as 
24 hour lights and increased traffic could pose a nuisance to nearby houses. The appropriateness 
of truck pumps should also be discussed in relation to C1 zoning.   

2. The property to be affected by the zoning proposal has a reasonable and economic use as 
currently zoned;. A smaller gas station or other small commercial business could possibly be 
placed on the commercially zoned portion of the property. Smaller lots are in great demand for 
housing and could probably be sold for a residential use, provided the residence was placed on 
the AG zoned side. 

3. The zoning proposal will not result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 
burdensome use of existing transportation facilities, utilities, educational facilities or public safety; 
The Seven Islands intersection has had numerous accidents in the past. It remains to be seen if 
the realignment of the intersection will decrease accidents at the location, especially since the 
wider highway has created a longer crossing. Pulling into or out of the location is concerning, 
especially turning left onto the highway, but the danger of the new intersection is yet to be 
determined.  

4. The zoning proposal is in conformity with the policies and intent of the Comprehensive Plan; The 
proposal does not meet the Comprehensive Plan, which does not support commercial activity in 
the area. The existing parcel is grandfathered. 

5. There are existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the property 
which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the zoning proposal; and Staff 
is assuming that the convenience store will not include food service uses, which would increase 
the size of the septic tank and drain field. The applicant’s representative was asked in an email 
what the 6,000 square feet would entail, but no response was received.  

8



5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

6. Granting the request would not have a “domino effect,” in that it becomes the opening mechanism 
for further rapid growth, urbanization or other land-use change beyond what is indicated in the 
Comprehensive Plan. Certainly, the requested zoning designation has fewer and less concerning 
uses than the previous request for C3. However, it is still the introduction of a commercial use in 
an area that is not supported by the Comprehensive Plan. Any commercial on the highway could 
encourage further commercial.   

 
Staff Comments 

        
Discussion is needed to determine whether the existing parcel justifies the additional zoning of an 
adjacent larger parcel, whether the use, including truck pumps, are appropriate for the C1 zoning district 
and whether trucks can navigate the plan as shown. The applicant should also describe the intended 
uses for the building and whether food service will be included. The development potential of the 
highway and whether the use could encourage additional growth should also be examined.   

9



10



11



12



13



14



verizon7
10300 Old Alabama Rd Connector 

Alpharetta, GA 30022 
M 404.844.6179

January 11,2024

Attn: Mr. Chuck Jarrell, Director of Planning and Development
Morgan County
150 E Washington Street
Madison, GA 30650

RE: Special Use Permit Application by Tillman Infrastructure LLC ("Tillman") for new cellular 
tower (“Tillman Tower Application”).
Site Location: 2811 Fears Road, Rutledge, Morgan County, GA

Dear Mr. Jarrell:

I am employed by Verizon and serve on its Network Real Estate Team. My job duties include oversight 
of high rent tower sites in the State of Georgia. Please accept this letter on behalf of Verizon to serve as 
substantiation for the above referenced cellular tower application.

Verizon presently leases space on an existing cellular tower, owned and/or operated by American 
Tower Corporation and located at 2811 Fears Road, Rutledge, Morgan County, GA (the “ATC Tower”). 
Verizon desires to relocate its wireless facilities from the existing ATC Tower to the proposed new 
cellular tower to be owned and operated by Tillman, which is the subject Tillman Application (the "Tillman 
Tower"). This letter evidences Verizon’s intent to relocate and collocate its wireless facilities onto the 
proposed Tillman Tower for the reasons set forth herein.

Specifically, pursuant to Chapter 7.26 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance, "the Director of 
Planning and Development Director will review with special care justifications that appeal only to undue 
expense and/or undue difficulties in entering into a lease agreement.. .and shall carefully weigh such 
claims, and the evidence presented in favor of them, against a project’s negative impacts at the proposed 
site.” The collocation of Verizon’s wireless facilities on the existing ATC Tower is commercially 
infeasible, because ATC, as the owner/operator of the existing tower, is unwilling to enter into a contract 
for such use with fair market rates and commercially reasonable terms and conditions, as further 
described below. Accordingly, the Tillman Application should be approved.

Verizon does not pursue relocation from existing sites without a considerable amount of careful and 
deliberate consideration, given the additional time, costs and effort required for relocating a site. This is 
particularly the case when it determines that a site relocation is necessary due to unreasonable 
economic conditions at existing sites that far exceed market conditions, commonly referred to as "high 
rent relocations”. In such instances, the high costs have a limiting impact on carriers’ financial resources 
to serve a particular community, which then limits a carriers’ ability to expand and improve wireless 
services needed to meet the demands of its customers. In some instances, a single cell tower in a 
jurisdiction can create an anti-competitive, monopolistic condition, where the tower owner controls the 
entire local market and leaves carriers with no other feasible option.

15



In this case, Verizon requests approval of the Tillman Application, because of ATC's economically 
unreasonable and economically burdensome costs, which is supported by the following:

Rental Fees and Escalations:

• Based upon Verizon’s current market rates paid for similar towers, the market rate for this 
location supports a monthly rental rate of ($3,923.50) with a 1.95% annual escalator.

• By way of illustration, ATC’s current rental fee charged to Verizon is nearly300% higher than the 
rent Verizon would pay on the Tillman Tower, a price difference that would significantly grow 
over the years, given Tillman’s far more flexible terms.

Equipment Modification Costs.

• Tillman's prices are all-inclusive, whereas ATC charges additional, unreasonable fees and rental 
increases for almost every technological upgrade or modification - whether Verizon seeks to 
add or replace its equipment. Due to ATC’s cost-prohibitive rental rates, escalation terms and 
other costs, Verizon has held off on modifications or upgrades to its equipment on the ATC 
Tower.

• In contrast, the Tillman Tower and lease terms would immediately offer dedicated space to 
accommodate Verizon’s needs to improve and modify the wireless technology serving the 
Morgan County community for many years.

• Furthermore, the ATC Tower may require costly structural tower modifications to 
accommodate new Verizon equipment, which also has a chilling effect on making 
improvements. The Tillman Tower is designed to provide ample structural support for future 
wireless equipment needed to meet the growing needs and demands of the Morgan County 
community.

In summary, under the existing lease for the ATC Tower, Verizon would be forced to spend over 
$325,000.00 more than what Verizon would pay under its agreement for the Tillman Tower. This 
amount assumes that Verizon would perform no technological upgrades to its current equipment on the 
ATC Tower. Verizon continuously works to make upgrades to its equipment on towers to improve 
service for its customers. Verizon seeks to relocate its facilities to the proposed Tillman Tower, which 
will provide a new tower option and opportunity to make needed technical improvements with 
economically reasonable rates and fees, consistent with market rates, in accordance with Section 7.26 
of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance.

Thank you in advance for your consideration of the Tillman Application.

Sincerely,

Matthew Hartley

Associate Director
Network Engineering/GA-AL
M 770.880.0649
matthew. hartlev@verizonwireless.com

16

mailto:matthew._hartlev@verizonwireless.com


 
 

1 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

           

   Staff Report 
    Morgan County Planning Commission 

  
Property location: 4200 Brownwood Road    
Property tax parcel: 030-030B  
Acreage: 33.69 acres  
Applicant: Tillman Infrastructure   
Applicant’s Agent: Towersource, LLC   
Property Owner: James & Joyce McClure  
Existing Use: Vacant 
Proposed Use: Telecommunications Tower   
 

Summary 
 

Tillman Infrastructure 
is requesting 
conditional use 
approval for a 
telecommunications 
tower on 33.69 acres 
located at 4200 
Brownwood Road 
(please note the 
Planning Office has 
no record of 
assigning this 
address). The 
property is currently 
vacant with a heavy 
tree canopy.  
 
Typically, a tower 
application is 
received when there 
is insufficient 
provider coverage in 
an area. In this case, 
the proposed tower 
(red star) is close to 
an existing tower 
(yellow star). 

Petition for:  Conditional Use – Telecommunication Tower 

        

17



 
 

2 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

This image, from the applicant’s 
application, shows the towers .35 miles 
apart.  Staff measurements show the 
towers approximately 1,550 feet, or .29 
miles, apart. The existing tower is located 
at 2803 Fears Road on property owned by 
Alan Ward. Section 7.26.3 of the Morgan 
County Zoning Ordinance states: No new 
cell tower may be established if there is a 
technically suitable space available on an 
existing tower within the search area that 
the new cell tower is to serve. The search 
area is defined as the grid for the 
placement of the antenna. 

 
The applicant represents Verizon in this application. Verizon is located on the existing tower on Fears 
Road, however, the applicant is requesting approval of the new tower due to an economic hardship. 
Specifically, the applicant states in their letter that “a site relocation is necessary due to unreasonable 
economic conditions at existing sites that far exceed market conditions, commonly referred to as “high 
rent locations’.” The applicant further explains that the monthly market rent for this location is 
$3,923.50, but the existing tower site is charging 300% higher than what would be charged on the new 
tower. The market rate given above implies that the existing rent could be $11,769 per month, but no 
actual numbers for the existing or proposed rent were given.  
 
Per staff research, lease rents charged to sell companies average from $34,000/yr ($2,833/mo) to 
$61,000/yr ($5,083/mo), although some were reported as high as $80,000/yr ($6,666/mo).  These are 
national figures, meaning the above information provided by the applicant suggests that a local tower 
charges significantly more than the national average.  
 
The applicant based their request for an economic hardship on language in Section 7.26.5 of the Morgan 
County Zoning Ordinance:   
 
The applicant must provide evidence of the lack of space on all suitable existing towers to locate the 
proposed antenna and the lack of space on all existing tower sites to construct a tower for the proposed 
antenna. If co-location on any such towers would result in less visual impact than the visual impact of the 
proposed tower, the applicant must justify why such co-location is not being proposed. The Director of 
Planning and Development will review with special care justifications that appeal only to undue expense 
and/or undue difficulties in entering into a lease agreement. The Director of Planning and Development 
shall carefully weigh such claims, and the evidence presented in favor of them, against a project’s 
negative impacts at the proposed site. 
 
The applicant admits that the nearby tower contains a Verizon antenna and did not provide further 
justification for the new tower other than the financial information given in the applicant letter.  

18



 
 

3 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The applicant provided a map of nearby towers. The existing tower and the proposed tower are shown 
in the middle (red arrow), with the next nearest tower on Brownwood Road near the Interstate (blue 
arrow) which is 3.5 miles away. However, there is a tower that is not represented on the map that is 
1.75 miles from the existing tower on Fears Road, located at 5071 Brownwood Road (green arrow).  No 
information was provided regarding this tower, its rental rates or how co-location on it would suit the 
desired coverage area. 

The applicant proposes a 295’ guyed 
tower with space for four carrier 
antennas. The tower is  shown 175.3 
feet from the front property line on the 
submitted site plan. Section 7.26.4 
states: Telecommunications facilities 
must be set back from any property line 
a sufficient distance to protect adjoining 
property from the potential impact of 
telecommunications facility failure by 
being large enough to accommodate 
such failure on the site, based on the 
engineer’s analysis required in this 

 

Section. The distance of 175.3 feet may be acceptable with an engineer’s analysis, which was not 
include in the application.  

19



 
 

4 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

Section 7.26.4 also states: Towers, guy 
wires and accessory facilities must satisfy 
the minimum zoning district setback 
requirements; 
 

The adjacent image shows the right guy 
wire and its surrounding easement, 
indicated by the dotted line. The 
easement description says it extends 30’ 
beyond the termination of the guy wire, 
shown by the 30’ measurement on the 
drawing. This shows that the guy wire is 
within the 75’ front setback required in the 
Agricultural Residential (AR) Zoning 
District. (See easement descriptions on 
page 3 of the construction drawings.) 

 

 

Section 7.26.4 also states: 
Telecommunications towers must 
be setback a distance equal to the 
height of the tower from any off-
site residential structure; 
 

and 

When a tower is adjacent to a 
residential use, it must be set 
back from the nearest residential 
lot line a distance at least equal to 
its total height; 
 

The applicant depicts the nearest 
residence across Brownwood 
Road and shows a 371 foot 
distance from the tower to the 
house.  

 

 

 

20



 
 

5 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

A map above shows the coverage with the proposed tower location. The map below shows the coverage 
with the existing tower. Green is the best signal; blue is the poorest. 

 

21



 
 

6 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

 

The proposed tower above with the Verizon antenna at 295’. The existing tower below, with the Verizon 
antenna at 280’. Verizon is the top antenna on both towers.  

 

22



 
 

7 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

The applicant’s letter states that the rent forced on Verizon prevents any technological upgrades on the 
existing tower. However, the drawing above of the existing tower was obtained by a Verizon permit for 
antenna upgrades, issued on May 2023. (See attached cover page from construction drawings with 
Director stamp and approval date May 10, 2023).   
 

The applicant’s construction 
drawings show the required 
landscaping around the tower 
enclosure, but does not indicate 
how the surrounding tree canopy 
will be addressed. Section 7.26.4 
states:   
Site location and development 
shall preserve the preexisting 
character of the surrounding 
buildings and land uses and the 
zoning district as much as 
possible; 
Leaving as much of the tree 
canopy as possible would 
preserve the existing character of 
the  parcel, especially for the 
house directly across 
Brownwood Road.  
 
 
 
 

 
 

Criteria for Consideration  
        

Section 21.3.1 Required Findings from Conditional Use Approval from the Morgan County Zoning 
Ordinance (Staff comments in blue): 

1. The proposed use is suitable in view of the use of adjacent and nearby property and the 
proposed use will not affect the existing uses or usability of adjacent or nearby uses;.  The 
question is whether the proposed tower would have a negative impact on the neighborhood, 
given that a tower is already existing within the viewshed. Per the Zoning Ordinance, co-location 
is required to prevent a negative visual impact.  

2. The proposed use will not cause an excessive or burdensome use of public facilities or services, 
current or planned, including but not limited to transportation facilities, utilities, educational 
facilities or public safety; If the application is denied, will Verizon abandon the existing tower on 
Fears Road?  

23



 
 

8 
Morgan County Planning & Development 

150 E. Washington Street, Suite 200 
Madison, Georgia  30650 

3. Off street parking and loading will be adequate, ingress and egress are suitable and safe, and 
vehicular traffic and pedestrian movement on adjacent streets is not substantially hindered; The 
ingress/egress easement appears to be suitable.  

4. Adequate provision is made by the applicant to reduce any adverse environmental impacts of 
the proposed use; and Cell tower sites have little erosion due to the small footprint, but no 
mention has been made regarding the number of trees to be removed. 

5. The hours and manner of operation, including noise, lighting, glare, odor, site design and scale 
are consistent with adjacent and nearby uses, as long as the manner of operation complies with 
all applicable ordinances and does not constitute a nuisance to nearby and adjacent properties. 
Cell towers are never consistent with surrounding scale and site design, however, traffic, noise 
and lighting are minimal after construction is complete. 
 

Staff Comments 

        
Language in Chapter 7.26 of the Morgan County Zoning Ordinance emphasizes co-location of antennas 
on towers to protect the viewshed in Morgan County.  There is language that the Director may consider 
undue expense, but justification has not been adequately provided. While the applicant’s letter implies 
that the monthly lease on the existing tower will be over $11,000 per month, no proof has been 
provided in the manner of a lease agreement or other such contracts. The letter ends with a statement 
that the existing lease will cost Verizon over $325,000 more than the new tower agreement, but again, 
no contract or agreement is provided. Staff can only assume that the $325,000 figure is a multi-year 
contract, as the math does not equal a yearly amount.  

Morgan County has not heard complaints from other carriers on the exiting tower, so is Verizon the only 
carrier having issues with the rent amount? If other carriers are already on the existing tower and do not 
need to relocate, is one carrier’s concern enough to justify the construction of a new tower in violation 
of the Zoning Ordinance’s mandates related to co-location?     

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 
 
 

ON BEHALF OF: 
  

52



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. LETTER OF APPLICATION 
2. CONDITIONAL/SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 
3. SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 
4. EXHIBITS  

A. ZONING DRAWINGS 
B. ECONOMIC HARDSHIP LETTER 
C. PROPAGATION MAPS 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 
 

LETTER OF APPLICATION  
Special Use Permit 

 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION  
 
 
Applicant:   Tillman Infrastructure, LLC  

152 West 57th Street 
New York, NY 10019 

 
Applicant’s Representative:  Towersource, LLC 
      1080 Holcomb Bridge Road 

Building 100, Suite 350 
Roswell, GA 30076 

 
Project Address:  Approx. 4200 Brownwood Road  

Rutledge, GA 30663 
Lat/Long: 33.564478, -83.588967 

 
Property Owner:  James L. McClure & Joyce Elaine J. McClure 
    4191 Brownwood Road 

Rutledge, GA 30663 
 

Map/Tax Lot Number:  SITE: DB 443 PG 1075 Tract 3 PIN# 030 030 B 
 
Land Use Designation:  Agricultural 
 
Zoning Classification:  AR  
 
Parcel Size:   33.69 acres 
 
 
RE:     Proposed Telecommunication Facility 
 
 
 
Tillman proposes to construct a new wireless telecommunication facility at the address Brownwood Road  
Rutledge, GA 30663. The proposed wireless facility will consist of a 295’ guyed tower, ground equipment, and 
six-foot-high security fence within a 2,500 sq. ft. leased area. The property will be accessible via a 30’ 
access/utility easement.  
 
Additional information on this proposal can be found in the Supplemental Narrative below and in the 
attached exhibits.  

54



 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE 
 
INTRODUCTION_________________________________________________________________ 
 
Tillman Infrastructure, LLC (Tillman) proposes constructing a new telecommunications facility in Morgan 
County, GA. The new proposed site aims to improve the quality of service for wireless customers in the 
area and provide wireless carriers with a cost-effective solution to deploy wireless technologies. 
 
The proposed site is the best feasible location to maximize coverage, network density and increase 
network compacity within the carrier’s designed search radius. The proposed site has been designed to 
minimize impact on neighboring properties by utilizing less intrusive design elements such as non-
reflective galvanized steel finishes, landscape screening, installing artificial lighting only when required, 
and preserving existing vegetation as much as feasibly possible. Such efforts help to maintain the 
character of the surrounding community and mitigate the impacts of the proposed tower. Tillman 
respectfully requests approval of the new wireless telecommunications facility as it meets all required 
criteria for development. 
 
 
PROPOSAL_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
The proposed telecommunications facility will be located at address 4200 Brownwood Road Rutledge, 
GA 30663. The proposed site will consist of a 295’ guyed tower, lightning rod, 2,500 sq. ft. fenced 
compound, ground equipment, and a 30’ wide access/utility easement from Brownwood Road. The 
tower compound will be secured by a six-foot steel fence with an anti-climb device at the top and 
covered with a 2’x2’ fence fabric. Additional fence details can be found on Sheet C6 of Exhibit A – 
Zoning Drawing. The proposed tower can accommodate up to four (4) wireless carriers. Power and fiber 
for the site will run underground from the nearest utility pole.  
 
The proposed site is in rural Morgan County, GA. The area is characterized by large, wooded parcels and 
a mix of agricultural, and residential uses near Interstate 20. The proposed site is zoned AR agricultural, 
and it’s primarily unused. Telecommunication facilities in the AR agricultural zoning district are approved 
by a conditional use permit. Conditional use permits require a public hearing and board approval.  
 
The proposed tower is setback 175’ 4” from the northern property line/right of way, 460’ 1” from the 
east property line, 292’ from the west property line. The closest residential structures are located 379’ 
and 713’ northeast of the proposed site. There is another residential structure, located off Brownwood 
Road, that is 993’ from the proposed site. All three houses are separated by a dense tree line that 
provides a natural buffer from the tower. Other surrounding uses include Alan Ward Grading company, 
timber cultivation, and other residential and commercial uses.  
 
Verizon Wireless’s Finance hardship is consistent with Morgan County’s Code of Ordinance Section 
7.26.5 “Additional Information Requirements for Towers: The Director of Planning and Development 
will review with special care justifications that appeal only to undue expense and/or undue 

55



difficulties in entering into a lease agreement”.  As evidenced in Exhibit B – Economic Hardship 
Letter, the rent increases, fees, and costs required to continue maintaining equipment on the ATC site 
are economically burdensome for Verizon Wireless and would not result in the same cost-effective 
operation as compared to what Verizon Wireless could achieve if it relocated to the new proposed 
tower. Verizon Wireless desires to relocate its wireless facilities equipment from the ATC site to the new 
proposed tower because the ATC site has become a high-cost antenna structure for Verizon Wireless. 
Co-locating on any of the existing sites within the search ring will result in the same high rent and 
adverse coverage changes in some areas.  
 
The new proposed site can accommodate up to four carries with Verizon Wireless as the anchor tenant 
at the top of the tower. The new tower will service Verizon Wireless residential customers and traffic 
along Interstate 20 and Reese Road. 
The proposed site satisfies all criteria for approval under the conditional use permit. The tower is 
designed to blend into the surrounding environment and mitigate the impact on adjacent parcels. The 
proposed tower is needed to continue to provide the best possible service to residents and visitors in 
this part of Madison County, GA.  
 
The proposed site will include:  
 

 Proposed Site 
Tower 295’ guyed tower with a 5’ lightning rod 
Location 33.564478, -83.588967 
Colocation Four (4) carrier antenna arrays supported 
Lease area 2,500 Square feet 
Fencing Six feet chain link fence with anti-climbing device 
Access 30’ wide access/utility easement 
Utilities Power and fiber will run underground within an easement.  

 
 

  

56



57



58


	Top
	Item1.	Scheduled Public Comment-Paula Sellers 04022024
	Paula Sellers Public Comment Request 04022024

	Item2.	March 19, 2024 BOC Meeting
	3-19-2023 BOC Minutes-draft

	Item3.	GA Investment rezoning
	march.gainvestment.rezone

	Item4.	Tillman conditional use
	Economic Hardship
	march.tillman.cu.tower

	Item5.	County Manager Report 04022024
	Item6.	Public Comments on Agenda Items 04022024
	Item7.	Commissioner Comments 04022024
	Bottom

